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U. 5. DISTRICT COLje
WESTERN DISTRICT AR LK}’}‘«JSAM

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FILED
FOR THE WESTERN DISTRICT OF ARKANSAS MAY
FORT SMITH DIVISION 12 2006
CHRIS B, JOHNSON, CLEAK
EY
FOUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY ) FPUTY CLERK
COMMISSION, )
) )
Plaintiff, ) aviL actionNo O - 1058
)
v. ) COMPLAINT
)
Meng S1M, L.L.C. dib/a Sonic Dirive-In )
)
Defendant, ) JURY TRIAL DEMAND
)

NATURE OF THE ACTION

This 1 an action under Title VIT of the Civit Rights Act of 1964, as amended (*“Title
VI, and Title |of the Civil Rights Act of 1991 o correct unlaw(ub employment practices and
to provide appropriate relief on behall o Gina R. Hirsch and other female employees. Ms,
Liirsch and other females were discriminated against by Delendant by heing subjected to sexual
harassment caused by the inappropriate sexual actions. overtures, and behavior of the male Night
Manager.  Ms. Hirsch was subsequently discharged in retahation for her complaints of sexual
harassment,

JURISIMCTION AND VENUE

i, Jurisdiction of this Court is invoked pursuant 1o 28 U.S.C. §§451, 1331, 1337,
343, and 345, This is an action authorized and mstituted pursuant to §706(0% 1) and (3) and
8706 and §707 ol Tiile VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 11.5.(0 §2000¢, el
sed. (UTitle VI

2. The employment practices alfeged o be unlawtul were and arc now being
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commitled within the jurisdiction of the United Stales District Court [or the Western District of
Arkansas, Fort Smith Division.
PARTIES

3. Plaintiff, Lqual Employment Opportunity Commssion (the “Commission™) is an
agency of the United States ol America charped with the administration, interpretation, and
enforcement of Title VI and 15 expressly authorized to bring this action by §706(1( 1) and (3)
and §707 of Trle VIT, 42 U.5.C. §2000-5(1).

4. AL all refevant times, Defendant Mena 5121, 1.1L.C, d/D/ Sonie Tirive-In
("Defendant Emplover™), was a hmited Liability corporation doing business in the State of
Arkunsas and the City of Mena and has continuously had at feast (ifleen {(15) employces.

5, At all relevant times, Defendant EZmployer has continuously been and is now un
employer enguaged nan mndustry affecting commerce within the meaning of §701(b), (g). and (h)
of Title VI, 42 UL.S.CL§82000e(bh), (2), and (h).

STATEMENT OF CLAIMS

0, More than thirty (30) days prior to the institution of this lawsuil, Gina [ Hlirsch
{ited a charge of discrimination with the Commission alteging violations of Title VI by
Delendant Emplover including sexual harassmient, retaliation, and discharge.  During the course
ol the investigation, allepations of sexual harassment towards former female employees were
discovered. Al conditions precedent o the institition of this Fawsuit have been fulfilled.

COUNT ]

7. From on or around December of 2003 and continuing, Defendant Employer has

cnpaped in unlawful employment practices at its [acility in Mena, Arkansas, in violation of

§703(a) of Fitle VI, as amended, 42 11.5.C. §2000e-2(x).  The unlawiul practices include, but
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are not limited o, sexual harassment of Ms. Hirsch by the male Night Manager.

8. On or about August of 2004, Ms. Hirsch reported the harassment to the Day
Manager, On or about September 15, 2004, Ms, Hirsch reported the harassment to the owner.
The harassment included, but was not limited to, sexual touching and remarks and requests for
sexual favors, tn addition 1o the sexual harassment. Ms. Hirsch was also physically assaulted by
the Night Manager.

<, The elTect of the practices complained of above has been to deprive Ms. Hirsch of

cqual employment opportunities and otherwise adversely atfect her status as an employee.

10, The unlawful employment practices complained of above were and are
intentional.
. Defendant Employer at all relevant times acted with malice or reckless

indif{ference 1o the federally protected rights of Ms. Hirseh.
COUNT I

12, From on or around December of 2003 and continuing, Defendant Lmplover has
engaged in unlawful employment practices at its facility in Mena. Arkansas, in violation of
§703 () of Tille V11, as amended, 42 U.5.CL §2000¢-2(a). - The unlawful practices include, but
are not Hmited to, the Night Manager sexually harassing previous and current female employees
because of their sex.

13, The effect of the practices complained of above has been to deprive previous and
current female cmployees of equal employment opportunitics and otherwise adversely alloct
(helr status as employees,

14, The unlaw [l cmployment practices complained ol above were and arc

tdentional,
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5. Defendant Lmployer at all relevant times acted with malice or reckless

indifference to the federally protected rights of previous and current female employees.
COUNYT I

L6 Since at least December of 2003, Defendant Eimplover has enpaped in unlawful
employment practices at its facility in Mena, Arkansas, in violation of §703(a) of Title VI, as
amended, 42 11.5.C, §2000¢-2(a) and §704 of Titke VI, as amended., 42 US.CL §2000e-3, The
unlawiul practice includes discharging or constructively discharging Ms. Lirsch in retaliation for
reporting sexual harassment.

17 On or about September 15, 2004, aller reporting the sexual harassment and
physical assault, Ms, Hirsch was informed that she had been removed (rom the schedule.

I8 The effeet of the practices complained of above has been 1o deprive her of her
federally protected rights and equal employment opportunitics and otherwisce adversely affect her

status of crployment.

19, The unlawtul employment practices complained of above were and are
mtentional.
200, Delendant Employer at all relevant times acted with malice or reckless

idifterence to the federally protected rights of Ms, Thrsch.
COUNTIV
21 Prior to December of 2003, Defendant Fmployer has engaged m unlawl(ul
cmplovment practices at its facility in Mena, Arkansas, i violation ol §703(a) of Tilde VI, as
amended, 42 U5.C.§2000c-2(a).  The unlawtid practices include, but are not limited o farlure

to prevent the sexual harassment of female employees. Ms. Hirsh reported the Night Munager’s

sexual conduct to the Day Manager as indicated in Defendant Emplover™s policy, but the Day
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Manager failed o take any action to end the sexval harassment.

22 The cifeet of the practices complained of above has been to deprive female
cmplovees of cqual employment opportunities and otherwise adversely affect their status as
emplovees.

23, ‘The unlawful employment practices complained of above were and are
imtentionzal.

24, Defendant Limployer at all retevant times acted with malice or reckless
indifterence to the federally protecied nghis of female employees.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

COUNTS L IL I, and TV

WHEREFORE., the Cominission respecttully prays that this Court:

A (irant a permanent injunction enjointng the Defendant Limployer, its officers,
successors, assigns and all persons in active concert or participation with i, from engaging n
any employment practice which diseriminates on the basis sex.

. Order Delendant Employer to istitute and carty out policics, practices and
programs which provide cqual employment opportunities which eradicate the effects ol its pasl
and present unlawful emplovment patterns and practices.

. COrder Delendant Employer to make whole Gina Flirsch and all female class
members who were subjected to Defendant’s practices of discrimination by providing
appropriate back pay with prejudgment interest, in amounts to be determined at (rial, and other
alfirmative rellel necessary to eradicate the cftects of its unlawful employment practices,
inciuding but not lmited to, placement in a position.

iy Order Defendant Fmployer to make whole Gina Hirsch and all female class
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members who were subjected to Defendant’s practices of diserimination by providing
compensation for past and future pecuniary fosses resulting from the unlawful employment
praclices deseribed above, including relocation cxpenses, job scarch expenses, and medical
CcXpenses, in amounts 10 be determined at trial.

k. Order Defendant Emplover to make whole Gina Hirseh and all Temale cluss
members who were subjected to Defendant’s practices of diserimination by providing
compensation for past and fature non pecuniary losses resulting from the unlawful practices
complained of above, including emotional pai, sutfering, embarrassment, inconvemicnce, loss of
erjoyment of life and humiliation, in amounts to be determined al tmal.

. Order Defendant Emplover to pay Gina Hirsch and all female class members who
were subjected 1o Defendant’s practices ol discrimination punitive damages for its malicious
ad/or reckless condnet, in an amount to be determned at trial.

(. Order Defendant Employer (o pay Gina Hirsch all the relicl 1o which she (s
entithed for Defendant’s tlegal acts of discharging her.

L1, Grant such further reliel as the Court deems necessary and proper,

1. Award the Commission ils costs in this action.

6
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JURY TRIAL DEMAND

The Commission requests a jury trial on all questions of fact raised by 1ts Complaint.

JAMES L, LEE
Deputy General Counsel

GWENDOLYN YOUNG REAMS
Associate General Counsel

5(«;?3 A .{’fj,ﬁ{ Z{f Eyp /é- f -f-’
FAYEA. WILLIAMS «
Acting Regional Allorney

TERRY BECH
Supervisory Trial Attorey

; " o

WILEIAM A, CASH-TR.
Secnior Trial Attorney
AR HBRO8]
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PAMELA B. DIXON
Senior Trial Attorney
AR # 95085

HOUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY
COMMISSION
Little Rock Arca Office
820 Louisiana, Ste, 200
Litle Rock, Arkansas 72201
Telephone:  (501) 324-53539
(3015 324-3065




